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Chairman’s Statement
FEWmE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | present herewith
to the shareholders of the Group the annual report and audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

During the year of 2017, the Group engaged in media and
culture business, entertainment and gaming business as well
as trading business. The Group’s revenue was HK$39,958,000
(2016: HK$195,562,000) for the year ended 31 December
2017, with a gross loss of approximately HK$3,203,000 as
compared to a gross profit of approximately HK$77,072,000
in the year of 2016. The Company recorded a loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$294,439,000
(2016: HK$39,766,000).

Basic loss per share for the year was approximately 49.15 HK
cents (2016: 8.06 HK cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The Group has established its media and culture business
through engaging with Hollywood famous film directors during
2017. The Group shall continue to explore the possibility of
further extending its business into the media market to further
broaden its income sources. Leveraging on Mr. Yan Xu’s and
Mr. Luo Lei’'s extensive experience in the entertainment business
and under the leadership of an experienced and energetic core
management team, we have full confidence we can steadily
develop our businesses. At the same time, the Group will
strive to improve its performance in its trading business and its
entertainment and gaming business.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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The Group shall strive to take a prudent approach in business
development to safeguard a higher shareholder’s return.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management and all the employees of the Group
for their dedication. | would also like to thank our shareholders,
suppliers, bankers and customers for their continuous support.

Mr. Yan Xu
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR R am AT

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group reported a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$294,439,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$39,766,000). The
loss was mainly attributable to (i) the gross loss of approximately
HK$3.2 million recognized during the year of 2017 as compared
to gross profit of approximately HK$77.1 million recognized
in the year of 2016; (i) the decrease in impairment losses of
approximately HK$26 million; (iii) the loss on change in fair value
of derivative financial liabilities of approximately HK$29.9 million
recognized during the year of 2017 as compared to a gain of
approximately HK$89.2 million recognized in the year of 2016 in
relation to the convertible bonds issued by the Company; and
(iv) an increase of approximately HK$74.4 million in the Group’s
operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017 as
a result of the exploration and development of the media and
culture business.

Basic loss per share for the year amounted to approximately
49.15 HK cents (2016: 8.06 HK cents). Net liability of the Group
were approximately HK$110,445,000 as at 31 December 2017
as compared to net assets of approximately HK$64,505,000 as
at 31 December 2016. The net liability was attributable to the
loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s deficiency attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted to HK$69.0 million,
representing a decrease in equity (leading to deficiency) of
HK$177.4 million over the Group’s equity attributable to the
owners of the Company of HK$108.4 million as at 31 December
2016. The deficiency per share attributable to the owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$0.10
(81 December 2016: net asset value per share attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$0.22).

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

During the year, the Group has acquired the entire equity interest
in Starlight Legend Investment Limited. Details can be referred to
the announcements of Company dated 13 December 2017 and
14 September 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 26
October 2017.

Except as disclosed above, there is no material acquisition and
disposal conducted by the Group during the year that should be
notified to the shareholders of the Company.

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Entertainment and Gaming

Affected by the junket arrangement with NagaWorld, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of NagaCorp Ltd. (“NagaCorp”) came
to an end in early 2017, and under the tightened credit control
over the Group’s gaming promotion business, this segment
recorded a significant decrease in revenue and a gross loss for
the year of 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group generated
revenue and gross loss in the amount of approximately HK$9.1
million (2016: HK$193.1 million) and HK$3.9 million (2016: gross
profit of HK$76.9 million) respectively from entertainment and
gaming business.

Trading of chemical products, and energy
conservation and environmental protection
products

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
shown improvement towards its trading businesses, its chemical
products business, and energy conservation and environmental
protection products business. The Group’s revenue amounted
to HK$30.9 million (2016: HK$2,419,000), with a gross profit of
HK$870,000 (2016: HK$152,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR R am AT

Media and Culture

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
engaged with the following famous Hollywood film directors to
tap into the business of film production and distribution.

Engagement with Mr. Felix Gary Gray

With the commitment in further diversifying and enhancing
the entertainment business of the Group so as to broaden the
income sources, the Group has engaged Mr. Felix Gary Gray
(“Mr. Gray”) on 28 June 2017 in relation to the development and
production of motion picture projects, which enable the Group to
tap into the business of film production and distribution.

Mr. Gray is an American film director, film producer, music
video director and actor. In 2004, he won the “Best Director”
award awarded by the American Black Film Festival and the
“Outstanding Film Director” award awarded by the Black Reel
Awards. He has directed a number of films such as “The Fate
of the Furious (2017)”, “Straight Outta Compton (2015)", “The
ltalian Job (2003)”, “The Negotiator (1998)" and “Set It Off
(1996)".

The accumulated record of worldwide box office of Mr. Gray’s
films amounted to approximately US$1,949.8 million.

During a term of three years, Mr. Gray will develop three
theatrical motion picture projects (the “Project(s)”) (expected
to be one Project per year) for the Group’s consideration and
approval. If the Group approves such Project(s), the Group will
further negotiate with Mr. Gray for designating such Project(s)
for production and further details of the production film package
which including but not limited to fully developed screenplays,
detailed production budgets, tentative start dates, proposed
locations, and suggested cast lists will be further discussed
between the Group and Mr. Gray. Mr. Gray may participate in the
production of such approved Project(s) as a director, a producer
or an executive producer. Mr. Gray also agreed that he will not
engage with other Chinese owned or controlled company for
similar arrangement.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Engagement with Mr. Roland Emmerich

The Group has also engaged Mr. Roland Emmerich (“Mr.
Emmerich”), an America’s Hollywood film director, screenwriter
and producer well-known for his disaster films, in July 2017, in
relation to the development and production of motion picture
projects.

Mr. Emmerich is an America’s Hollywood film director,
screenwriter and producer, and is widely known for his
disaster films. He has directed a number of popular films
such as “Independence Day: Resurgence (2016: recorded
worldwide box office of approximately US$389 million*)”, “The
Day After Tomorrow (2004: recorded worldwide box office of
approximately US$544 million*)”, “Godzilla (1998: recorded
worldwide box office of approximately US$379 million*)”,
“Independence Day (1996: recorded worldwide box office of
approximately US$817 million*)”, “Stargate (1994: recorded
worldwide box office of approximately US$196 million*)” and
“The Noah’s Ark Principle (1984)". The accumulated record
of worldwide box office of Mr. Emmerich’s films amounted to
approximately US$3,802 million*.

* Source: www.boxofficemojo.com

During a term of three years, Mr. Emmerich will develop three
Projects (expected to be one Project per year) for the Group’s
consideration and approval. If the Group approves such
Project(s), the Group will further negotiate with Mr. Emmerich
for designating such Project(s) for production and further details
of the production film package which including but not limited
to fully developed screenplays, detailed production budgets,
tentative start dates, proposed locations, and suggested cast
lists will be further discussed between the Group and Mr.
Emmerich. Mr. Emmerich may participate in the production
of such approved Project(s) as a director, a producer or an
executive producer. Mr. Emmerich also agreed that he will not
engage with other Chinese owned or controlled company for
similar arrangement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R wm AT

Engagement with each of Mr. Bryan Singer,
Mr. Robert Zemeckis, Mr. Alan Taylor and Mr.
Jonathan Murray Chu

After the engagement with each of Mr. Felix Gary Gray and Mr.
Roland Emmerich for the development and production of motion
picture projects, the Group has then successively engaged (i)
Mr. Bryan Singer (“Mr. Singer”), (i) Mr. Robert Zemeckis (“Mr.
Zemeckis”), (i) Mr. Alan Taylor (“Mr. Taylor”) and (iv) Mr. Jonathan
Murray Chu (“Mr. Chu”) for the development and production of
motion picture projects

Set out below is the brief biographies and cooperation details of
each of Mr. Singer, Mr. Zemeckis, Mr. Taylor and Mr. Chu:

Mr. Singer is an American Hollywood film director, television
series director, screenwriter and producer, being well known
for action adventure films. He had directed various popular
films, including “X-Men (2000: recorded worldwide box office of
approximately US$296.3 million*)”, “X2: X-Men United (2003:
recorded worldwide box office of approximately US$407.7
million®)”, “Superman Returns (2006: recorded worldwide box
office of approximately US$391.1 million*)”, “Valkyrie (2008:
recorded worldwide box office of approximately US$200.3
million*)”, “Jack the Giant Slayer (2013: recorded worldwide
box office of approximately US$198 million*)”, “X-Men: Days
of Future Past (2014: recorded worldwide box office of
approximately US$747.9 million*)” and “X-Men: Apocalypse
(2016: recorded worldwide box office of approximately
US$543.9 million*)”. He was also one of the producers and
directors of the television series “House”. The accumulated
record of worldwide box office of the seven aforesaid films

amounted to approximately US$2,784.9 million*.
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During a term of three years, Mr. Singer will develop three
Projects (expected to be one Project per year) for the Group’s
consideration and approval. If the Group approves such
Project(s), the Group will further negotiate with Mr. Singer for
designating such Project(s) for production and further details
of the production film package which including but not limited
to fully developed screenplays, detailed production budgets,
tentative shooting dates, proposed locations and suggested cast
lists will be further discussed between the Group and Mr. Singer.
Mr. Singer will serve as the director of the first approved Project
and participate in the production of other approved Project(s)
as a director or producer. Mr. Singer also agreed that he will not
engage with other Chinese owned or controlled companies for
similar arrangements.

Mr. Zemeckis had been awarded Oscar Best Director and
received several nominations. His magnum opuses include
“Forrest Gump”, “Back to the Future”, “Back to the Future Part
II”, “Who Framed Roger Rabbit”, “Cast Away” and “The Polar
Express”. The accumulated record of worldwide box office of Mr.

Zemeckis's films amounted to approximately US$4,243 million*.

During a term of three years, Mr. Zemeckis will develop six
Projects (expected to be two Projects per year) for the Group’s
consideration and approval. If the Group approves such
Project(s), the Group will further negotiate with Mr. Zemeckis for
designating such Project(s) for production and further details
of the production film package which including but not limited
to fully developed screenplays, detailed production budgets,
tentative shooting dates, proposed locations and suggested
cast lists will be further discussed between the Group and Mr.
Zemeckis. Mr. Zemeckis will serve as a director of all approved
Project(s). Mr. Zemeckis also agreed that he will not engage
with other Chinese owned or controlled companies for similar
arrangements.
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Mr. Taylor is a famous American director across film and
television industries. His major film works include “Thor:
The Dark World (2013: recorded worldwide box office of
approximately US$644.6 million*)” and “Terminator Genisys
(2015: recorded worldwide box office of approximately
US$440.6 milion*)”. He had also participated in the shooting
of certain popular television series as a director as follows:
“The West Wing”, “Six Fest Under”, “Sex and the City”, “Lost”,

» o«

“‘Rome”, “The Sopranos”, “Mad Men” and “Game of Thrones”.

The accumulated record of worldwide box office of Mr. Taylor’'s
flms amounted to approximately US$1,085 million.

During a term of three years, Mr. Taylor will develop six
Projects (expected to be two Projects per year) for the Group’s
consideration and approval. If the Group approves such
Project(s), the Group will further negotiate with Mr. Taylor for
designating such Project(s) for production and further details
of the production film package which including but not limited
to fully developed screenplays, detailed production budgets,
tentative shooting dates, proposed locations and suggested cast
lists will be further discussed between the Group and Mr. Taylor.
Mr. Taylor will serve as the director of all approved Project(s). Mr.
Taylor also agreed that he will not engage with other Chinese
owned or controlled companies for similar arrangements. In
addition, Mr. Taylor will provide the Company with a three year
priority adoption right for his original projects. That means during
the three-year term of cooperation, Mr. Taylor’s original projects
or the projects of which controls over development or production
owned by him and which he intends to develop will first be
submitted to the Group for consideration.

Mr. Chu is a young and new prominent ethnic Chinese American
film director and screenwriter. His magnum opuses include
“G.l. Joe: Retaliation (2013: recorded worldwide box office of
approximately US$375.7 million*)”, “Now You See Me 2 (2016:
recorded worldwide box office of approximately US$334.9
million*)”, “Step Up 2: The streets” and “Step Up 3D”, in
which the return on investment of “G.l. Joe: Retaliation” was
considerably high. The accumulated record of worldwide box
office of Mr. Chu’s films amounted to approximately US$1,128
million.
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During a term of three years, Mr. Chu will develop at least
three Projects (expected to be one Project per year) for the
Group’s consideration and approval. If the Group approves
such Project(s), the Group will further negotiate with Mr. Chu
for designating such Project(s) for production and further details
of the production film package which including but not limited
to fully developed screenplays, detailed production budgets,
tentative shooting dates and suggested cast lists will be further
discussed between the Group and Mr. Chu. If all the three
Projects are approved, Mr. Chu will serve as the director of two
of the approved Projects and participate in the production of
another approved Project as a producer. Mr. Chu also agreed
that he will not engage with other Chinese owned or controlled
companies for similar arrangement.

Engagement with Mr. Jonathan Liebesman

The Group has also engaged Mr. Jonathan Liebesman (‘Mr.
Liebesman”) for the development and production of motion
picture projects.

Mr. Liebesman is a famous Hollywood film director and his
magnum opuses include “Battle: Los Angeles (2011: recorded
worldwide box office of approximately US$211.8 million*)”,
“Wrath of the Titans (2012: recorded worldwide box office of
approximately US$305.3 million*)” and “Teenage Mutant Ninja
Turtles (2014: recorded worldwide box office of approximately
US$493.3 million*)”. The accumulated record of worldwide
box office of Mr. Liebesman’s films amounted to approximately
US$1,109.7 million*.

During a term of three years, Mr. Liebesman will develop at
least six Projects (expected to be two Projects per year) for the
Group’s consideration and approval. If the Group approves such
Project(s), the Group will further negotiate with Mr. Liebesman
for designating such Project(s) for production and further details
of the production film package which including but not limited
to fully developed screenplays, detailed production budgets,
tentative shooting dates, proposed locations and suggested cast
lists will be further presented to the Group by Mr. Liebesman.
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Mr. Liebesman will serve as a director of all approved Project(s).
Mr. Liebesman also agreed that he will not engage with
other Chinese owned or controlled companies for similar
arrangements.

Marshall — Oscar’s nomination for Best
Original Song at the 90th Oscars’ Academy
Awards

In addition, as disclosed in MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL of this report, the Group has acquired the entire
equity interest in Starlight Legend Investment Limited during
the year of 2017 (the “Acquisition”). The fim product, namely
Marshall, acquired by the Group through Acquisition received a
nomination for Best Original Song at the 90th Academy Awards
(“Oscars”).

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not yet
generated revenue from media and culture business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s deficiency attributable
to its owners was approximately HK$68,990,000 (equity
attributable to its owners was approximately HK$108,370,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016).

ASSESSMENT OF RECOVERABILITY OF
THE AMOUNT OF TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

The Company had impairment loss on trade and other
receivables of HK$24.7 million for year ended 31 December
2017 (“2017 Impairment Loss”). For financial reporting
purpose, the Group was required to assess the recoverability
of the amount of trade and other receivables on an individual
basis at each reporting date and to provide for impairment
for those trade and other receivables which were considered
irrecoverable. In determining the recoverability of a trade/gaming
receivable, the Group considers any change in credit quality of
the receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.
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Upon assessment on an individual basis, trade receivables and
advance to patrons totaling HKD6.8 million and HKD17.9 million
respectively were overdue and had no indication of the likehood

of recovery, and as such 2017 Impairment Loss was then {E&518°

CREAREETER EHRVUFBERRARFER
2 48385 Bl 56,800,000/% 7T &% 17,900,000/ 7T 2 %t

HAYEA KB 2R R ER T —tFR

recognized.

The below table provides for the ageing of those advances TF&RIEHZER —F —+FE R E 224,700,000

impaired in the year of 2017 of HKD24.7 million. TLERR 2 BRER D AT ©
Impairment
amount in
Ageing of trade receivables impaired CREE S EIFRIENRE 57 year of 2017
R-ZT—t&E®D
RES£E
As at 31 December 2017 R-F—tE#+=-HA=+—H (HKD’million)
(@A)
0 - 30 days 0£30H -
31 - 90 days 31£290H -
91 — 365 days 912365H 6.8
Over 1 year fB R -
Total et 6.8
Impairment
amount in
Ageing of the advance to patron impaired EiREREF2RRE ST year of 2017
R-ZZT—t&E®D
BELE
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZF¥—t&E+=-H=+—H (HKD'million)
(B&BT)
0 - 30 days 0Z30H -
31 - 180 days 31£180H =
181 — 365 days 181£365H 0.6
Over 1 year FB R F 17.3
Total et 17.9

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the impairment of
advance to patrons of HKD17.9 million was attributable to the

total uncollected advance to 5 patrons.
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For those trade and other receivables that are impaired, the
Group continues to pursue collection efforts which include
periodic reminder letters, phone contact, issue of demand
letters, etc. During the year, the Group has discussions with
several patrons and finalized their repayment plans which would
be proceeded within the year of 2018. In addition, the Group has
consulted with external legal counsel for advice on what actions
can be taken against certain customers.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operation by internally
generated cash flow, short term loans, and through issuance of
promissory note and convertible bonds.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a stable financial position.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank balances and
cash amounted to approximately HK$96,647,000 (2016:
HK$133,000,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the current ratio was approximately
0.56 (2016: approximately 3.29) based on current assets of
approximately HK$253,473,000 (2016: HK$360,037,000) and
current liabilities of approximately HK$451,314,000 (2016:
HK$109,590,000).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN
EXCHANGE RATES

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and business transactions
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, Australian
dollars and U.S. dollars which have been relatively stable
during the year. The Group was not exposed to material foreign
exchange risk and has not employed any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group employed 12 (2016: 43) employees in Hong Kong
and Macau as at 31 December 2017. The Group’s remuneration
policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels and
the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Employees may also be invited to participate in the
share option scheme of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

On 14 September 2017, the Company entered into share
purchase agreement with a related party, controlled by a director
and a controlling shareholder of the Company for the acquisition
of entire equity interest of Starlight Legend Investment
Limited and its subsidiaries. According to the share purchase
agreement, agreed payment is a contingent consideration
that will be realised if the acquired business and the existing
projects achieve their respective profit target, calculated on
certain predetermined basis, during the designated period of
time. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the contingent
consideration payable is HK$1,563,000.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant
contingent liability as at 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

CHARGE ON ASSET

As at 31 December 2017, film product in the amount of
approximately HKD16,682,000 was pledged to secure a bank
borrowing of approximately HKD4,846,000. Save as disclosed
above, there was no charge on asset of the Company as at 31
December 2017.
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MAJOR CORPORATE EVENT

Change of Company Name

The Change of Company Name and Change of Stock Short
Name: Pursuant to the special resolutions passed by the
Shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 30 June 2017 and as certified by the Certificate
of Incorporation on Change of Name and the Certificate of
Secondary Name of the Company issued by the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda on 11 August 2017, the change of
English name of the Company to “Starlight Culture Entertainment
Group Limited” and the secondary name of the Company to
B LIRZEE B H R AR came into effect from 6 July
2017. The Certificate of Registration of Alteration of the Name
of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the
Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 24 August 2017,
certifying the registration of the said new name of the Company
in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) with effect from that
date. With effect from 30 August 2017, the stock short name
for trading in its Shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited has been changed to “STARLIGHT CUL” in English and
to “E %X {t” in Chinese.

The new name of the Company brings a fresh corporate
image and more accurately reflects the Group’s commitment
to diversifying its business in the future. As the management
team has fully participated in formulating a clear development
roadmap of the Group, we expect the business diversification
approach to bring new momentum and start a new chapter in
the development history of the Group.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2017

EETLEEIR

X ENCIEE

BRAREEEESRDEHE  RERRERQFRN
ZE—tEFRA=THBTHREEN RS LBBKY
BRARERYKCBERERAAFMEERR = —
FNAT—HELINEREHAMBHERE S
HERAEER AR ANEZBEE R [Starlight
Culture Entertainment Group Limited | * & ZA&RQ &2
Fo_EWMEBEAIEAXRESERRAF]ER
ZE—LEFLARBAER-BARFTEMERZE
—tFNA T HBEBLFMEETERAREELRRE
HRPE BERAEAQEz LM EBEREREE
BlE622E A RHEHI 16N BB ZMIT EE AR
ER-BZFTE—+tFNAZTHB  ARABROHRES
BERXSFMERRARBEENRNENERBEEE R
[STARLIGHT CUL ] Bt XEBEE /2K X
bl

AR B HY R A T S R B B Y (D Y R AL ERE
RMRAREBAREKBIONEZERHZITLHRL - H
RERBRERNSEAREBWHEREREN
HlE BABAEBSZTEREEERIANERY
N BAMAEBERENFTRE-



Management Discussion and Analysis

Major acquisition and connected transaction

During the year, the Group has acquired the entire equity interest
in Starlight Legend Investment Limited. Details can be referred to
the announcements of Company dated 13 December 2017 and
14 September 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 26
October 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other major event during
the year that should be notified to the shareholders of the
Company.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 14 September 2017 and 13 December 2017 and the
circular of the Company dated 26 October 2017 (the “Circular”),
in relation to, among other things, the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in Starlight Legend Investment Limited (the
“Acquisition”). Capitalised terms used herein shall have the
meanings as defined in the Circular unless the context requires
otherwise.

The Promissory Note issued by the Company in favour of
the Vendor dated 13 December 2017 in the principal amount
of USD12,884,615.38 as part of the consideration for the
Acquisition is due for payment on 12 December 2018. On 29
March 2018, the Vendor entered into a side letter (the “Side
Letter”) with the Company, pursuant to which the Vendor has
irrevocably and unconditionally agreed and undertaken to the
Company the following:

(i) The Vendor and the Company shall jointly appoint an
independent valuer, to conduct a valuation of the Target
Group as at 31 December 2018 (the “Updated Valuation”).
The determination by the independent valuer shall be final
and binding on the Vendor and the Company.
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(i)  If the Updated Valuation is less than US$25,000,000, the
Vendor irrevocably, unconditionally, and absolutely agrees
to waive and forgo the principal amount of the Promissory
Note payable by the Company under the Promissory Note
to the extent of an amount equal to the difference between
the Updated Valuation and US$25,000,000 (the “Waiver”).

(i) The due date of the Promissory Note shall be extended
until 12 December 2019.

The Vendor is wholly owned by Mr. Yan Xu, an executive
Director, and thus is a connected person of the Company. The
Waiver constitutes financial assistance provided by the Vendor
to the Company. Since the Wavier is provided to the Company
on normal commercial terms or better and no security will be
provided over the assets of any member of the Group in relation
to the Waiver, the Waiver is fully exempt from all reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements according to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

Reason for the Vendor entering into the Side
Letter

As disclosed in notes 18 and 35 of consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, goodwill of HKD98,671,000
was recognized as an asset of the Company upon completion
of acquisition of Target Group on 13 December 2017. An
impairment loss of goodwill in the amount HKD43,844,000
was recognized and the carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2017 was HKD54,827,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Recognition of goodwill at acquisition and
goodwill impairment

Reference is made to audited consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 July 2017 of Target Group (“Pre-
acquisition Accounts”), as shown in page 5 of Appendix Il and
in page 2 of Appendix Ill of the circular of the Company dated
26 October 2017, which had a fim product as current asset
with a book value of approximately USD12,773,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$99,629,000). This film product reflected a
film, namely Marshall, which had not been released until October
2017.

Upon completion of acquisition of Target Group on 13
December 2017, the fair value of the above mentioned film
product was determined to be approximately USD2,157,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$16,855,000) in a valuation
conducted by an independent valuer based on the discounted
future cash flow of this film product over the next five years with
reference to the accumulated boxing record of this film. With
the decrease in value of film product and together with other
factors, the goodwill generated from the Acquisition amounted
to HK$98,671,000.

As mentioned above, as at 31 December 2017, the recoverable
amounts of the Target Group have been determined based on
a value in use calculation by discounting future cash flows to be
generated from the film production and investment projects over
the next five years. Due to the possible delay or uncertainty in
the production of some potential projects in the coming years,
the management took a prudent approach to exclude those
potential projects from the future cash flows in the calculation
of value in use, and this resulted in a decrease in recoverable
amount of the Target Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR R am AT

However, the Vendor is confident that those potential projects
would be proceeded over the next five years although
they might not be proceeded within one year and that the
recoverable amounts of the Target Group should be no less than
USD25,000,000, i.e. the Consideration for acquisition of Target
Group. As such, the Vendor has agreed to extend the due date
of the Promissory Note for one year to 12 December 2019 and
has agreed to discount the principal value of the Promissory
Note of an amount equivalent to the difference between the
recoverable amounts of the Target Group as at 31 December
2018 and USD25,000,000, provided that the recoverable
amounts of the Target Group as at 31 December 2018 is lower
than USD25,000,000.

Details can also be referred to the Company’s announcement
- UPDATE ON MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION
IN RELATION TO ACQUISITION OF THE ENTIRE EQUITY
INTEREST IN STARLIGHT LEGEND INVESTMENT LIMITED
dated 29 March 2018.

There is no other major event after the reporting period that
should be notified to the shareholders of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with an aim to protect the
interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
including those revised code provisions which became effective
on 1 April 2012, 1 September 2013 and 1 January 2016. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company complied
with all applicable provisions of the Code for their respective
applicable periods except for the deviations stated below:

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of the shareholders. Due to other pre-arranged
commitments, three of the independent non-executive directors
was unable to attend the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 30 June 2017.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business strategic
decisions and performances.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised six Executive
Directors, Mr. Yan Xu (Chairman), Mr. Chau Chit (Deputy
Chairman), Mr. Luo Lei (Chief Executive Officer), Ms. Chen Hong,
Mr. Hung Ching Fung and Mr. Li Haitian; one Non-executive
Director, Wang Shoulei, and four Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Wai Kwan, Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak, Mr.
Kong Chi Mo and Mr. Hong Tao.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRS

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
persons with academic and professional qualifications in the
fields of accounting and appropriate expertise. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent Non-executive
Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence to
the Company and the Company considers these directors to be
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

ARBZBIFATESTAREAEER LMK
BEERLBEERZALT - RERBUETES
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Details of Directors’ attendance records during the year ended REZ-_FT—+tF+_A=+—HILFERN E=
31 December 2017 are set out below: HEe® aaﬁzz FEEHIIAT
Meetings Attended/Held
HRERE BrERaY
Anti-money Investment
Audit  Nomination Remuneration  Laundering Credit Steering
Directors gz AGM Board ~ Committee = Committee = Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
RS hagE
REEEXE EZE BHZEE  REZEE  FHZEE %88 [HZEE %88
Executive Directors HiTEE
Dr. Lam Yin Lok (resigned on 31 May 2017) MELET
(RZB-tFRAZT-ARE) 00 310 03 000 00
Mr. Tsui Kin Ming (resigned on 31 May 2017) HEALE
(RZB-tFRAZT-ARE) 00 8/10 00 000
Mr. Ng Kuen Hon REERE
(resigned on 28 February 2017) (RZZ—tFZA=+\BEH) 00 0
Mr. Hung Ching Fung HEEEE 17 19/21 00
Mr. Chau Chit BE%E 1 2721 1N
Mr. Yan Xu (appointed on 11 May 2017) BlEE
(R=F-t5RAT-REZA) n 1216 0/0 0/0 00
Mr. Chen Hong (appointed on 11 May 2017) Mﬁi
(R=F-t5RAT-REZA) n 15/16 0/0 0/0 00
Mr. Luo Lei (appointed on 31 May 2017) K&E%E
“EtERA-T-HEZME) o 1213
Mr. Li Haitian (appointed on 31 May 2017) ?i% 3
(RZZ-tFRA=T-REZH) 11 13113 000 000 00
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wang Shoulei TFEEE
(appointed on 25 August 2017) (RZE—tENA-THREEHR) 00 m
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Mr. Daniel Domingos Anténio Daniel Domingos Antdnioft £
(resigned on 31 May 2017) (R=F-tFRA=1-HRE) 00 910 202 3 33 00 00
Mr. Kwok Chi Chung (resigned on 31 May 2017) B84 4
(R=F-tFRA=1-HREE) 00 710 212 33 3/3 0/0 00
Mr. Chow Wing Tung (resigned on 31 May 2017)  BIAR %4
(R=F-tFRA=1-HREE) 00 8/10 212 3/3
Mr. Wong Wai Kivan IREEE(RZF J[ﬁ
{eppointed on 31 May 2017) EA=+-BRER) % 12113 1 10 " 00 00
Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak REEEE(R=F J[ﬁ
(appointed on 31 May 2017) RA=t-REZER) 0 13/13 1 1 1" 00
Mr. Kong Chi Mo (appointed on 31 May 2017) I8REE(R-F J[ﬁ
RA=t- E| BZf) il 1213 n n 0/0 00
Mr. Hong Tao (appointed on 31 May 2017) HEEE (R {ﬁ
RA=t- E| BZf) 0/ 1213 n n 0/0 00
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Corporate Governance Report

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the
board of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The Directors
receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each board meeting. The
board of Directors has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
Directors’ appointment, succession planning, risk management,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the board of Directors
to the management include the preparation of annual and interim
accounts for board approval before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the board
of Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors of the Company including Independent
Non-executive Directors, are appointed for terms of one year or
three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting pursuant
to the Bye-laws of the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, Directors appointed to fil
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next following general
meeting and can be eligible for re-appointment at that time.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves
with legal and regulatory developments, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the Code.
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During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by
ways of attending seminars or self-reading.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 28 March 2012,
[t comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors and the
Chairman of the Board, and is currently chaired by Mr. Chau
Chit.

Its primary objectives include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board under diversified perspectives set out
in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Under the code provision B.1.1, the Company should establish
a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties. The roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee include the determination of the
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, such as any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and make recommendations to the board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

As at the date of this report, members of the Remuneration
Committee included:

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak
Mr. Wong Wai Kwan

Mr. Kong Chi Mo

Mr. Hong Tao

Four meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held in
2017 to discuss remuneration related matters.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed
the existing terms of employment contracts of the executive
Directors and appointment letters of the non-executive
Directors with reference to the factors including salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company and desirability of performance-based remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee considers that the existing
terms of employment contracts of the executive Directors and
appointment letters of the non-executive Directors are fair and
reasonable. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 79 of this report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company’s external auditors are BDO Limited (the
“Auditors”). The audit committee of the Group (the “Audit
Committee”) is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Auditors have performed audit service and their remuneration in
respect of audit service is HK$681,000.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and duties. Its principal
duties are to review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems. As
at the date of this report, members of the Audit Committee
included:

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan

Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak
Mr. Kong Chi Mo

Mr. Hong Tao

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the Auditors on the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017, and is of the opinion that the preparation of
the consolidated results complied with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing terms in
relation to the appointment of the Group’s external auditors are
fair and reasonable.
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ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING
COMMITTEE

An Anti-money Laundering Committee was established on 12
February 2015. At the date of this report, members composed
of four Executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Company’s anti-money laundering policy and procedures and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board, monitoring the implementation and compliance with
the Company’s standard operation procedures for anti-money
laundering and reviewing such policy, as appropriate, and
making recommendations on any revisions that may be required
to the Board.

CREDIT COMMITTEE

A Credit Committee was established on 12 February 2015. At
the date of this report, members composed of three Executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for reviewing of the
Company’s process and policies on credit approval and recovery
and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board, monitoring the implementation and compliance with the
Company’s standard operation procedures for credit approval
and recovery and reviewing such policy, as appropriate, and
making recommendations on any revisions that may be required
to the Board.

INVESTMENT STEERING COMMITTEE

An Investment Steering Committee was established in June
2010. At the date of this report, members composed of
three Executive Director and four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for the consideration,
recommendation of potential investment projects. Ad-hoc
meetings will be held when potential projects are identified.
During the meeting, they will review individual project’s position
and action to be taken if necessary, and to recommend to the
board for consideration and approval.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the
responsibilities of the Auditors to the shareholders of the
Company are set out on pages 90 and 91 of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
risk management and internal control system and for reviewing
its effectiveness on an annual basis, in respect of controls on
financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard shareholders’ interest and the Group’s assets.

The risk management and internal control system are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance. The system
aims to eliminate, or otherwise manage, risks of failure in
achieving the Company’s objectives.

Main features of the risk management and
internal control system

The objectives of the risk management and internal control
framework of the Group include:

° to enhance corporate governance standards;

° to continuously establish and improve the company-wide
and top-down approach risk management and internal
control system;

° to strengthen the Group’s risk management and internal
control in compliance with the Main Board Listing Rules
requirements; and

° to address on-going changes and challenges and reduce
uncertainties.
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Three-line defense risk management model

The Group has used a three-line defense risk management
model to identify, assess, mitigate and manage risks. At the
first line of defense, operational departments are responsible for
identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated with each
business. The management, as the second line of defense, sets
out policies and procedures, defines management structure, and
provide guidance on risk management. It ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of defense is
effective. As the third line of defense, the Audit Committee, with
the assistance of the Group’s internal audit department, ensures
that the first and second lines of defense are effective through
on-going assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system.

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant Risks
The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Identification

° Identifies risks that may affect the Group’s businesses.

Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment

baseline developed by the management; and

° Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Responding

° Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk

assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.
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TERERRS

Monitoring and Reporting

Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place; and

° Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management
and the Board regularly.

With the assistance of the Group’s internal audit department for
implementation of risk management framework, management
promptly identifies risks, evaluates the likelihood and impact of
risks, assesses the adequacy of action plans to manage these
risks and monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the actions
plans. A risk register is prepared to summarise the identified key
risks, the assessment of risk and related risk mitigating actions
and tabled for discussion by the Audit Committee, and for
reporting to the Board through the Audit Committee members.
The risk register summary facilitates the Board in reviewing the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, the Group’s
ability to respond to changes in its business and the external
environment, as well the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing risk monitoring and related mitigating internal control
measures.

Internal Control

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal
audit team. The team plays an important part in the assessment
of the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group
and reports directly to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
The team conducts internal audit reviews on material controls
and compliance with policies and procedures of the Group.
Plans and tools for corrective actions and control improvement
are identified and communicated with operations management
to address any issues or deficiencies identified. The team
monitors the implementation of remediation plans and actions
by the operations management and reports the outcome to the
Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
conducted a review of the Group’s system of internal control
to ensure the effective and adequate risk management and
internal control system and convened meetings regularly to
discuss financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Based on the foregoing, the Group concludes that the
Group’s risk management and internal control system, as
well as resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions, is adequate and effective.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Audit Committee also ensures that proper whistleblowing
policy is in place so that employees can report any concerns,
including misconduct, impropriety or fraud in financial reporting
matters and accounting practices, in confidence and without
fear of recrimination, for a fair and independent investigation
and the appropriate follow-up action. Employees can report
these concerns to either the Group internal audit department
or chairman of the Audit Committee. The identity of the
whistleblower will be treated with the strictest confidence.

In 2017, no incidents of fraud or misconduct were reported
from employees, Shareholders or stakeholders that had a
material effect on the Company’s financial statements or overall
operations.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board ensures the inside information is kept strictly
confidential until the relevant announcement is made. The
Directors are not aware of any significant areas which need to be
brought to the attention of the Shareholders.
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COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Cheung has
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to refresh his skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings can send a written request to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company to request a Special General Meeting
(“SGM”).

The written request should be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 1203, 12/F,,
118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by
a statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s)
and signed by the shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company will convene a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of
the deposit of the request. The actual SGM shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of the written request.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meeting

The procedures for shareholder(s) to put forward proposals at
SGM include a written notice of those proposals being submitted
by the shareholder(s) of the Company, addressed to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 1203, 12/F., 118
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.
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Procedures for nomination of Directors for
election

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website at
www.starlightcul.com.hk.

AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no
significant changes to the Company’s constitutional document.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders
through the Company’s annual report and financial statements,
the interim report, as well as the AGM. The AGM allows the
Directors to meet and communicate with shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate
website is maintained to disseminate Company announcements
and other relevant financial and non-financial information
electronically on a timely basis.
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The Company is of the view that sound environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) performance is important to the
sustainable development of its business and community, and
hence is committed to promoting environmental protection,
social responsibility and effective corporate governance.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Group has engaged the management and
employees across all functions in order to identify relevant ESG
issues and to assess their materiality to the Group’s business as
well as the Company’s stakeholders stipulated below, through
reviewing our operations and internal discussions. Disclosures
relating to the material ESG issues identified have been included
in this ESG Report pursuant to the requirements of Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules (the “ESG Guide”).
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication Channels
FinrE H2 RRAE BERE
Customers — Customer relationship — Face-to-face meetings and on-site
Y - BFBERE visits
- Protect the rights of customers - BHEERERENED
— REEFERN
Suppliers — Fair and open procurement — Suppliers’ satisfactory assessment
HrER — N ARBERE — R W E R
—  Win-win cooperation — Face-to-face meetings and on-site
— BRatE visits

EHEEENMEMAFD

General public
NN

— Involvement in communities

- HR2HE

— Business compliance

- XBEM

— Environmental protection

awareness
— RRER

Organization of community activities

— BRI
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RIE g MERRE

The table below shows the ESG issues which were determined
to be material to the Group, together with the aspects on the
ESG Guide to which they relate, based on the assessment
performed by the Group. This ESG Report mainly covers the
policies, initiatives and performance of the Group’s business in
relation to these issues, for the year ended 31 December 2017
(the “Reporting Period”):

ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Guide
RIE -HERESESIMHSRE - HERESER

TRINTREBEAREET I EMBEECHAKHE
MEBEAZERE HEhErHE ERZEHE
PR ZEBRE HERERESIEH -ARE HE
RERREFEREBREZE_T—tF+TA=1+—
BIEEE ((REHE)) BZERERRZARE X
BHE i hRAE -

Material ESG issues for the Group

HASKEMSBEAZRE HERESHE

A. Environmental

BE

A1 Emissions
P

A2 Use of resources
BIRE R

A3 The environment and natural resources
BRERRABR
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ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Guide

RIR

R g MEARSE

Material ESG issues for the Group

HASEMEBEAZRE HEREGHE

B.

Note:

HERELIESIFHRE - HERELGER

Social

e

B1  Employment
(A

B2 Health and safety
fEEEZ S

B3 Development and training
BR RIED

B4  Labour standards
8 T8

B5  Supply chain management
e g E R

B6  Product responsibility
EmEE

B7  Anti-corruption
R&ES

B8 Community investment
HERRE

Since the Group is principally engaged in entertainment and
gaming business, trading business and media and culture, no
substantial amounts of packaging materials were used in the
Reporting Period. Therefore, disclosures relating to this aspect, as
set forth in the ESG Guide, is not applicable to the Group and so
has not been made.

Labour practices

BITER

Workplace health and safety
TESidRER 2

Employee development and training
1B B8R &I

Anti-child and forced Labour
RETI K& T

Supplier management

HrEn e R

Product quality

EmEE

Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
RERRREERE

Community programs
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The operation of the Group has limited impact on
the environment. The main business of the Group is
entertainment and gaming, media and culture, and trading,
which is not the main cause of environmental pollution.
Moreover, the business of the Group does not involve
industrial activities and thus the total amount of emission,
resources used and waste produced is low.

However, the Group understands that it is the responsibility
of all corporations to ensure that emission of pollutants
and consumption of resources are minimized and carbon
footprints are produced. For such purpose, the Group has
identified the following goals to reduce consumption of
resources:

Goals

- Reducing emission of carbon dioxide
- Reducing consumption of resources
- Reducing production of waste

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance
with the rules and regulations related to environmental
protection and did not identify any violations that were
related to environmental protection and had significant
impact on the Group.

EMISSION

There were mainly two types of greenhouse gases
emissions of the Group during the current fiscal year,
including (but not limited to) direct emission from vehicles,
and indirect emissions from purchased electricity in offices.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group'’s vehicles travelled
18,085 km in total. Total emission of nitrogen oxides and
sulfur dioxide amounted to 16 kg and 26 g respectively.
Particle emission amounted to 1.5 kg while carbon dioxide
emission amounted to 4.3 tonnes. The vehicles were
monitored and inspected by the system on a regular basis
to keep them in the best conditions in order to increase
fuel consumption efficiency and ensure road safety.
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For purchased electricity in offices, the Group encourages
the employees to set the air conditioners at the most
comfortable temperature and switch them off and switch
off lights when it is not necessary so as to reduce emission
of greenhouse gases. The Group has also put notices at
eye-catching areas in the offices to remind our employees
about energy saving in the course of business.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has always been promoting sustainability
by assuming the social responsibility of environmental
protection in the course of business and, on the premise
of minimizing the impact on the environment, creating
unlimited possibilities with limited resources. In this regard,
the Group attaches great importance to employees’
environmental awareness, thus has put forth a number
of initiatives with the goal of “green office”, educating
employees about how to fully utilize the resources and
save energy. The Group aims at maximizing the efficiency
of our resources in commercial aspect while eliminating
waste and contributing to the society in social aspect.

The Group also embraces its responsibility in
environmental protection throughout the course of office
administration and daily operation. Apart from adhering to
the principle of recycling and reducing use, the Group is
committed to creating green offices to minimize the impact
on the environment. In light of the nature of the business
of the Group, the consumption of energy, electricity, water
and other natural resources in the offices are limited.
Power consumed by the Group for the current fiscal year
amounted to 69,388 kWh (5.782 kwh per employee) and
total carbon dioxide emission amounted to 54.8 tonnes,
mainly due to daily consumption in the offices.
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Below are measures taken by the Group in saving energy:

Adopting double-sided printing and promoting use of
recycled paper;

Switching off unused lights and electric appliances to
reduce energy consumption;

Keeping the room temperature at a comfortable
level and switching off the air conditioners when not
necessary;

Switching off the air conditioners and lights after
office hour and when they are not in use;

Requiring employees to turn their computers and
other devices to the sleep mode or switch them off
when leaving the office (including visiting clients and
having lunch); and

Conducting regular maintenance for office equipment
(such as air conditioners, computers, lights,
refrigerators and paper shredders) to ensure normal
operation.

As per the business nature of the Group, water
consumption is very limited, mainly daily water
consumption by the employees in offices during business
hours. The domestic sewage of the Group does not
include hazardous wastewater and is directly discharged

to the municipal sewer pipeline. In order to reduce
wastewater, employees of the Group are encouraged to
save water. In the Reporting Period, water consumption

amounted to 2 m® (0.16 m® per employee).
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DATA ON GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION

R g NEARSE

BERBEHFHEBE

Unit Data

KPI 1.2 & 2.1 BRSBTS E1.2%2.1 =Lims iR
Vehicles i 18,085 km CO2: 4.3 tonnes
18,0852 2 Z&{bhx : 4.008

Power consumption H&E 69,388 kWh CO2: 54.8 tonnes
69,388 FLBF Z & bk : 54.8MF

Total S Total CO2: 59.1 tonnes

48 — LK - 59,118

PRODUCTION OF WASTE

Solid waste of the Group is mainly produced in the daily
operation of the offices, including daily paper consumption,
office paper waste and food waste made by employees. All
domestic waste is collected and disposed by the property
management office of the office building on a regular basis.

The Group is committed to reduce waste production. The
Group encourages the employees to recycle stationery and
reduce waste with an aim to prevent waste production at
the initial stage. Moreover, the Group has adopted a digital
operation method to centralize all documents and regularly
educates its employees about environmental protection.
For example, the employees are required to print double-
sided and reuse paper printed single-sided in order to save
and reduce the use of paper and other natural resources.
Permission is also required for printing in the offices for
statistical and adjustment purposes on the use of paper,
so that resource utilization can be enhanced.

The Group has established appropriate measures for
disposal of computers and related products such as
printers and toner cartridges. Unused digital products are
transferred or reused while obsolete accessories and used
toner cartridges are collected by third party companies for
recycling.

In case it is necessary to dispose of an item, the Group
encourages our employees to collect and classify the
waste before disposing so as to reduce the negative
impact on the environment.
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SOCIAL

B1 Employment
Labour practices

To ensure that the Group is able to operate according
to professional and ethical labour practices, the Group
has developed clear work processes with robust control
mechanisms which have been clearly communicated
to all employees. Certain policies to govern employees’
affairs such as payroll, attendance and termination are
clearly set out in staff appointment letters in compliance
with Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. USA, Macau,
PRC, Australia and Kingdom of Cambodia offices are in
compliance with the relevant labour laws and regulations
locally respectively.

The Group also aims to promote the diversity of workforce,
including in terms of age, gender and nationality, as well as
a culture of equal opportunity. The management regularly
reviews the Group’s remuneration policy in relation to
relevant market standards.

B2 Health and safety
Workplace health and safety

The Group has established a set of policies which is
focused on maintaining a healthy and safe working
environment, and which includes the following
requirements:

- The facilities operated by employees should meet
safety and health standards; and

= relevant information and training should be provided
to employees in respect of risks to their health and
safety which may arise out of their work.

The Group did not violate any health and safety laws and
regulations of USA, Australia, Kingdom of Cambodia,
PRC, Macau and Hong Kong, where applicable, during the
Reporting Period.
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The Group has established a mechanism for monitoring
occupational health and safety, as well as procedures for
dealing with related risks. The Group engages employees
in the determination of appropriate occupational health
and safety precautionary measures. Accident reporting and
investigation procedures have also been adopted for the
follow-up of any health and safety incidents.

Regular inspections and management review of health and
safety have been performed to ensure the effectiveness of
the policies and measures.

B3 Development and training
Employee development and training

The Group strives to promote the long-term development
of its employees by providing learning opportunities that
broaden their skills and make them valuable assets to the
Group.

Internal training and external seminars are offered to
employees including in the areas of finance, governance,
rules and regulations, supervisory and managerial skills, as
well as various technical training courses relating to their
respective job duties.

B4 Labour standards
Anti-child and forced labour

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child and forced
labour in the Group, and is totally committed to creating a
work environment which respects human rights.

In addition to having well-established recruitment
processes requiring background checks on candidates
and formalised reporting procedures to address any
exceptions found, the Group also performs regular reviews
and inspections to detect the existence of any child or
forced labour in the operations.
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B5 Supply chain management
Supplier management

The Group interacts with a number of suppliers for trading
businesses. We have established and implemented
supplier management policies and procedures to manage
the risks associated with our supply chain, including those
associated with environmental, social and governance
practices.

B6 Product responsibility

With the traded products entirely sourced from suppliers
regarding our trading businesses, the group has
established and implemented product quality checking
policies and procedures to manage the risks associated
with our traded products to mitigate risk related to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services.

The Group did not violate any related laws and regulations
of USA, Australia, Kingdom of Cambodia, PRC, Macau
and Hong Kong, where applicable, during the Reporting
Period.
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B7 Anti-corruption
Ant-corruption and anti-money laundering

The Group has in place a number of policies addressing
anti-corruption, such as acceptance of gifts, and conflicts
of interest, which provide guidance to employees in
this area. The Group has also established policies and
procedures to deal with anti-money laundering in its
operations.

In addition, the Group has established prevention system
by setting up communication channels for faults and anti-
corruption reporting. The whistle-blowing system can
handle any breach of laws and regulations.

Relevant articles on anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering are provided to employees for their study and
reference in order to raise their awareness of the code of
conduct as well as related procedures and guidelines.

During the Reporting Period, no legal case regarding
corruption was brought against the Group or its em-
ployees. Also, there were no cases of non-compliance with
laws and regulations on anti-money laundering in USA,
Australia, Kingdom of Cambodia, PRC, Macau and Hong
Kong.

B8 Community investment
Community programs

The Group has been supporting sports and other
charitable activities many years. During the Reporting
Period, the Group arranged several sports activities to
promote health and community involvement.
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HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND B (BE HEREAREE
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE 5|y &g
INDEX

Key performance Section containing
indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks

Al $2 4R BB R (KPI) (RE-HEREQRE) REBEHE st

A. Environmental
A IBIE
Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 :

General Disclosure Environmental
— MR =i

Information on:

BEBERKBEREH
B MoK R T BE
TR EMEERERE
MEESH

=

the policies; and
BR M

=

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

b) BTHRTABEAZENHRBEIERIRINE

e
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions  Emissions
data
A1 BERU R R AR B BE R BUE e
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total Emissions
A2 BRERBETNE R
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Key performance Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks

A 82 (B SIB R (KPI) (RE -HEREEGRE) HBEM ik

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced Not applicable During the course of

A3 FMELEEEEEDER NiE A business, the Company
did not produce any
chemical or medical-
related hazardous waste.
RRAEBEERER W
EEATA 2R EENA
B ESEEREY -

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced Not applicable During the course of

AMAFMEAEESEEYRE TiE A business, the Company

did not produce a large
amount of non-hazardous
waste, therefore, it did not
include the data of non-
hazardous waste in the
calculation this time.
RRAEBEERER W
BEXREEZEEED
E AR R R KRB IEE
EEEY CBBENAGE
#HE A o

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions  Emissions
and results achieved BE

A1.5 3R E BE PR E B 1 b K P 1R BCR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-  Waste production
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction EEES
initiatives and results achieved
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B 15 E SR T 18 A R

EXREREERA
s



51

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IREE

Zi &Hr \AfliE =

Key performance

Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
FASEIE R (KPI) (RIE -HEREEGRE) HBEM st
Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : EiRER
General Disclosure Environmental
—AIRE RE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BREAER (BIERER - KR EARME) #BR

A2.1

A2.1

A2.2

A2.2

A2.3

A2.3

A2.4

A2.4

A2.5

A2.5

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type
ERRESNERR, RNBERERE AR
1%

Water consumption in total and intensity
BREKEREE

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved

Tt BE TR R R s 5 B PTG AR

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

it SRERE A /KR AT BRI RE - LA R R T
KR e A 8 R PTG RCR

Total packaging material used for finished
products

HEXmABERTHNAE
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R g MEARSE

Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
FAS B IE R (KPI) (RE -HEREEGRE) HBEM ik
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural

Resources

BHEA3  IRIERXAER

General Disclosure Environmental

— MK R

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.
MIEBEITAHRERRAERERERZENBRK -

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them

A1 HIREEBHRERRAERNERATERE
KREREUTENTH
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Key performance Section containing

indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
FASEIE R (KPI) (RIE -HEREEGRE) HBEM st

B. Social

B. #&

Aspect B1: Employment

EEB1: E{E

General Disclosure Employment

—RRIREE (=

Information on:

BT RE BB R
B IERHE R
b~ RIBAR A KR H Ath
FBREN

=

the policies; and

BR: R

S

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

(b)) BETFTHBETABEAZEMNEBZEERRRMNE
¥} o
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Key performance
indicators (KPls)
A 82 (R SIB R (KPI)

ESG Report

(RE-HEREQRE) REBEHE

RE g NERRSE

Section containing

disclosures Remarks

st

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2 : @RHEZE

General Disclosure
— B R

Information on:

FRRRZE2THEREMREREBEBELEEN:

(@) the policies; and

@ BX: X

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

(b)) BETFTHBETABEAXENEBZERRRMNE
¥l o

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[ETEB3 : 3 & RIEH

General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
ERRAEREBITIEBRENNBE R EENBE -#
MIEEE) o
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Key performance Section containing
indicators (KPls) ESG Report disclosures Remarks
A 82 (R SIB R (KPI) (RE -HEREEGRE) HBEM st

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : ¥ T %A

General Disclosure Labour standards
— B R & TR

Information on:

BRI E TR A ST

a) the policies; and

BR: R

S

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
Labour standards.

b) BFHBTABEAZENEBEIRZLAOE
o

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[ETEBS : #tFEsEEE

General Disclosure Supply chain management
—MRIREE HEsE R

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
EIEHEENRE L g ARBR-
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Key performance
indicators (KPls)
A 82 (R SIB R (KPI)

ESG Report
(RE -HEREEGRE)

RE g NERRSE

Section containing
disclosures

1% 5B E AR

Remarks

st

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EREE

General Disclosure
— B R

Information on:
ERFREESNREORERRS &
BB E LA R R

of

S

the policies; and

BER: R

S

compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
BTHRTABERZENEBERLBRHE
o

(b)
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[E@EB7 : RE/S

General Disclosure
— MR

Information on:

BRADLEFERE B BRGF R R E

S

the policies; and
128> SN

=

compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

b) BETFHETAFBBEAZENHBERER -

Product responsibility
EmEE

Product responsibility
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RIE g MERRE

Key performance

indicators (KPls) ESG Report
FASEIE R (KPI) (RE -HEREEGRE)

Section containing
disclosures

% 5 E &R

Remarks

st

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EmEBS : #HEiRE

General Disclosure
— B R

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRLME2ERTREEMELRFTEMBREE
BEBEE EAREFZOBUR -
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yan, aged 48, Mr. Yan was accredited as an Economist
with a specialty in Management by the Personnel Department
of Sichuan Province* (P0/I|%& AZEE&) in 2003. He has 20
years of experience in property development in the PRC and
extensive experience in the entertainment business through
investment in various companies, and financing films. Mr. Yan is
the legal representative and an executive director of Chengdu
Xuhe Property Development Group* (XEBIEM S ERF S
A7), a company established in the PRC. He is also the
legal representative and an executive director of Sichuan Xuhe
Film Company Limited* (PUJIIJEM 2% BR A E]), a company
established in the PRC.

Mr. Chau Chit (“Mr. Chau”), aged 53, was an Executive
Director of the Company on 22 July 2013. Mr. Chau currently
serves as the chairman of the Hong Kong Jiangyin Trade
Association and the vice president of Federation of HK Jiangsu
Community Organisations Limited. He holds a bachelor degree
in chemistry from Zhejiang University and an EMBA degree
(Executive Master of Business Administration) from Zhejiang
University.

Mr. Chau was appointed as an executive director and as
the Chairman of Vision Fame International Holding Limited
(@ company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
in Hong Kong (stock code: 1315)) on 22 July 2015 and 23
September 2015 respectively. He was re-designated to Co-
Chairman and appointed as the chief executive officer of Vision
Fame International Holding Limited on 1 March 2017.

Mr. Chau was appointed as an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Sino Stride Technology (Holdings) Ltd (Stock
Code: 8177). Mr. Chau was appointed an executive director,
the managing director, the chairman of the executive committee
and a member of the investment committee of HNA International
Investment Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 521) in June 2006.
Mr. Chau resigned his positions at HNA International Investment
Holdings Limited with effect from 24 October 2013.
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Mr. Luo Lei (2E), aged 47, is a television and film director
and producer. He has been in the television and film industry for
over 15 years, and has directed several Chinese mid- and long-
length television series and films, including the television series
TIERS N EIEEE (Love in Sunshine®), EZEF (Blossoms of
Hibiscus Flowers®), #8—LEfF =% (Cheng Du Wang Shi*), i3
T (Snow Region Eagles*), and the film A&5E BB 75 H) i &
(The Story of Panda and Assi*). He also has extensive working
experience in the film and television advertisement industry.

Ms. Chen, aged 46, obtained a Master’s Degree in Economics
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 2004,
and is the angel investor of Shanghai Ma Shang Fei Yang
Calculation Technology Company Limited* ( /85 FRiGTE
HRITAMRAR) . Ms. Chen is an experienced investor with
investments covering technology and telecommunication sectors
and has interest in various PRC-based technology and/or
telecommunication related companies, and listed companies in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Hung Ching Fung (“Mr. Hung”), aged 34, was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 27 September
2014. Mr. Hung obtained a Bachelor Degree in Commerce from
Macquarie University in Australia in 2007. Mr. Hung worked as
an auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Grant Thornton from
2007 to 2010. Mr. Hung is a full member of CPA Australia. Mr.
Hung has been the Financial Controller of Jimei Group since
2010 and has been an executive director of Cloud Investment
Holdings Limited (previously known as China Bio Cassava
Holdings Limited), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8129), since August 2013. He was
a non-executive director of Asa Resource Group Plc, a company
whose shares are listed on the Alternative Investment Market of
London Stock Exchange Plc. (AIM code: asa.l) from September
2015 to July 2017.
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Mr. Li Haitian (ZE3X) , aged 25, graduated from the China
Central Radio and TV University (now known as The Open
University of China) with a major in finance in 2014, and was
registered and approved as a securities broker by the Securities
Association of China in 2013. Mr. Li worked at CITIC Securities
Co., Ltd. from 2013 to 2017, and has experience in investment
financing and securities brokerage. He has acted as a sole
financial adviser in the financing of first round share capital of
Chengdu Century Club International Traveling Limited* ( 5% #85z
Bt AR BB IRTTAE AR A A]) in 2015 and the fund raising and
issue of units of the new media film fund of Dahan Investment
Asset Management (Beijing) Company Limited* ( K& #% &
E4EE (dbR)EMRAA) from 2016 to 2017, and has
extensive experience in providing financial services related to the
entertainment industry.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang, aged 34, graduated from Shanghai International
Studies University with a master’s degree in Economics in 2009.
He is currently the head of the debt capital market department
and structured finance department of Zhongtai International
Capital Limited (=B ELE AR A Al), responsible for
monitoring the operation of the debt capital market department
and structured finance department. Prior to that, he had acted
as the general manager of the greater Shanghai region of
Zhongtai Financial International Limited (A 2= & @ E KB R A
7)) , responsible for the development in the Hong Kong market.

Mr. Wang has also been a non-executive director of Yuhua
Energy Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02728), since April
2017.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan (Ef#&), aged 49, obtained a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong in 1992 and a master’s degree in business administration
from Washington University in St. Louis, U.S.A. in 2009. He
is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Currently, Mr. Wong is the Chief Financial
Controller of Thinktank Learning Inc., and previously was the
general manager of the financial audit department of Shanghai
Fosun High Technology (Group) Co., Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of Fosun International Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00656). Mr. Wong has extensive working experience in the audit
and consulting areas, particularly in initial public offerings, risk
management and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Wong was
an independent non-executive director of Shougang Concord
Technology Holdings Limited (now known as HNA Holding
Group Co. Limited), whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00521) and a member of
each of the audit committee, the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of that company, for the period from
June 2010 to October 2013.

Mr. Wong was previously appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company from September 2013
to November 2014 and served as a member of each of the
audit committee, the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the investment steering committee of the
Company. He has been an independent non-executive director
of Vision Fame International Holding Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
01315) since July 2015 and is a member of each of the audit
committee and nomination committee of that company.

He has been a non-executive director of Vobile Group Limited,
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 03738) since June 21, 2017 and is a
member of the audit committee of that company.
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Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak ($£BA%8), aged 50, obtained
a master degree from University of Cambridge in 1991. He is
the Chairman of The Red Group Investment Limited and was
previously the Managing Director of UBS Investment Bank. He
has a wealth of experience in the international financial sector.
Mr. Ngai is also a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Committee member of the Heilongjiang Provincial Committee
of the People’s Political Consultative Conference, Fellow
Commoner and Development Advisory Council Member of Clare
Hall, University of Cambridge, Council Member and Chairman of
the Institutional Advancement Committee of Lingnan University,
member of the Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel, and a
member of the Administrative Appeals Board.

Mr. Kong Chi Mo (iZT& &) (“Mr. Kong”), aged 42, has
over 19 years of experience in accounting, auditing, financial
management, corporate finance, investor relations, company
secretarial affairs and corporate governance. Presently, Mr. Kong
holds the position of independent non-executive director in
Aowei Holding Limited, Huazhang Technology Holding Limited,
ZACD Group Ltd. and AK Medical Holdings Limited whereas
in China Vanadium Titano-Magnetite Mining Company Limited
(“China Vanadium”), he holds the position of Company Secretary
and Authorised Representative. All these public companies are
listed on the main board or growth enterprise market of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Prior to this, he was the independent non-executive director
of CAA Resources Limited, a company also listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from April 2013
to August 2017. Mr. Kong was the executive director and
chief financial officer of China Vanadium from October 2013
to May 2015 and from May 2008 to May 2015, respectively.
Mr. Kong worked at KPMG from October 1999 to December
2007 and was promoted to senior manager during his term of
office. Prior to joining KPMG, Mr. Kong worked as a finance
trainee in Hutchison Telecommunications (Hong Kong) Limited
from June 1997 to March 1998, and as an associate in
PricewaterhouseCoopers from March 1998 to October 1999.

Mr. Kong obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
December 1997. Mr. Kong has been a fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants since February 2008, a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors since May
2010, a fellow of each of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators since February 2012, an ordinary member of
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since October
2017 and a full member of Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association since November 2017.
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Mr. Hong (i#i8) , aged 40, obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from the Asian Institute of Management
in 2006. Mr. Hong has around 15 years of working experience in
the PRC, the United Kingdom and Hong Kong and experience
in project development and investment as well as corporate
governance in the energy, aviation and real estate fields. Mr.
Hong previously worked at Yunnan Power Grid Co., Ltd. from
1999 to 2004, and was a business consultant at C&C Business
Solutions Limited from 2006 to 2008. Mr. Hong served as
deputy manager of the board office of Honghua Group Limited
(@ company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 00196)) from 2008 to 2012, board
secretary of Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited (now known
as China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited)
(@ company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 00871)) from 2012 to 2013 and
Head of Investment of Yue Da Holdings Limited (now known as
Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited) (a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00629)) from 2013 to 2015
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of Starlight
Culture Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on page 94 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group reported a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$294,439,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 as compared with a loss of approximately
HK$39,766,000 in the year of 2016. The loss was mainly
attributable to (i) the gross loss of approximately HK$3.2 million
recognized during the year of 2017 as compared to gross profit
of approximately HK$77.1 million recognized in the year of
2016; (i) the decrease in impairment losses of approximately
HK$26 million; (i) the loss on change in fair value of derivative
financial liabilities of approximately HK$29.9 million recognized
during the year of 2017 as compared to a gain of approximately
HK$89.2 million recognized in the year of 2016 in relation to the
convertible bonds issued by the Company; and (iv) an increase
of approximately HK$74.4 million in the Group’s operating
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017 as a result
of the exploration and development of the media and culture
business.
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Basic loss per share for the year amounted to approximately
49.15 HK cents (2016: approximately 8.06 HK cents). Net
liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$110,445,000
as at 31 December 2017 as compared to net assets of
approximately HK$64,505,000 as at 31 December 2016. The
net liabilities was attributable to the loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Key risks factors

The following section lists out the key risks and uncertainties
which the Group faces. It is a non-exhaustive list and there
may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to the key risks
factors outlined below. Besides, this report does not constitute a
recommendation or advice for anyone to invest in the securities
of the Company and investors are advised to make their own
judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the securities of the Company.

1. We are subject to the credit risk of our gaming patrons and
trading customers.

2. Local taxation may increase and tax liability may increase
for future amendment of tax rules.

3. A weakening in economic and credit market conditions
may adversely affect tourism and the profitability of our
entertainment business.

Future development and important events
after the end of the financial year

Looking ahead, the business environment remains very
challenging as downward pressure on economy of the PRC, the
global financial and economic conditions are expected to remain
unstable. Nevertheless, the Group will cautiously review and
adjust the business strategies from time to time, and seek the
best returns to maximise value of the Shareholders.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. We are
aware that, minimizing the consumption of resources and
adoption of best environmental practices in the business
process of the Group to the extent practicable is our underlying
commitment to preserving and improving the environment.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopts effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. Green initiatives include recycling of used papers,
energy saving and water saving.

The Board is pleased to present you the environmental, social
and governance report (the “ESG Report”) set out on pages
37 to 57 of this report which depicts the performance on the
sustainability of the Group.

Relationship with suppliers, customers,
employees and other stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers, employees and other
stakeholders to meet the Group’s medium and long-term goals.
The Company creates a framework for motivating staff and
a formal communication channel in order to maintain healthy
relationships with its employees and other stakeholders.

Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

In relation to human resources, the Group is committed to
complying with the requirements of the ordinances relating to
disability, gender, family status and racial discrimination, as well
as the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety of employees of
the Group, so as to safeguard the interests and well-being of its
employees.
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There is no reported case of non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations in relation to the groups’ entertainment and
gaming business as well as trading business.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the authorised share capital of the
Company during the year. Details of the movement in the issued
share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 98 of the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company had no distributable reserves at 31 December
2017 calculated under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended). The Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of HK$196,230,000 at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$76,385,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@ it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the largest one and five largest
customers accounted for 37% and 82% respectively of the
total sales for the year. Purchases from the largest one and five
largest suppliers accounted for 33% and 73% respectively of the
total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of the
Company own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, the interests of Directors of the Company in
the businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company
(“Competing Business”) as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Core Business Activities of the Company

(1) Entertainment and Gaming business
(2)  Trading business

(8)  Media and Culture business

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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2. Interests in Competing Business

Directors’ Report
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2. MHFERB2ES

Competing
Name of Director Name of Company Nature of Interest Business
EEna AT EH EamE MPEH
(Note)
(BitaE)
Lam Yin Lok International Junket Promoter Company  Director and sole shareholder (1)
(resigned on Limited EERE—RE
31 May 2017) BEREYHRN—ABRAF
PREEEE
(RZF—+F
LA=+T—B#ME)
Clark Resort Travel and Director and controlling shareholder (1)
Amusement Corp. EEREBREE
RURERRBREEEFR AR
Ng Kuen Hon Clark Resort Travel and Chairman (1)
(resigned on Amusement Corp. EE
28 February 2017) REuREBRKERLEERRDA"
RiEZE
(RZF—+F

—RAZt+\BEE)
* For identification purpose only

Note: Such businesses may be conducted through subsidiaries,
associated companies or by way of other forms of
investments.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company
is interested in any business apart from the Company’s
businesses which compete or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly with businesses of the Company.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Dr. Lam Yin Lok and Reach Luck International Limited (“Reach
Luck”), being the controlling shareholders of the Company,
entered into a deed of non-competition (“Deed of Non-
Competition”) dated 19 September 2014, details of which
have been set out in the paragraph headed “6. MATERIAL
CONTRACTS” in the section headed “APPENDIX V — General
Information” of the Composite Document jointly issued by Reach
Luck and the Company dated 26 September 2014, and the
paragraph headed “Deed of Non-Competition” in the section
headed “ Letter from the Board” of the Circular issued by the
Company dated 18 August 2014.
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The Company has received the annual declarations from Reach
Luck and Dr. Lam on compliance with their undertakings under
the Deed of Non-Competition. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed
that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Compliance
have been complied with by Reach Luck and Dr. Lam.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Chairman

Mr. Yan Xu (appointed on 31 May 2017)
Dr. Lam Yin Lok (resigned on 31 May 2017)

Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Luo Lei (appointed on 31 May 2017)

Executive Directors

Mr. Chau Chit (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Chen Hong (appointed on 11 May 2017)

Mr. Tsui Kin Ming (resigned on 31 May 2017)

Mr. Ng Kuen Hon (resigned on 28 February 2017)
Mr. Hung Ching Fung

Mr. Li Haitian (appointed on 31 May 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Shoulei (appointed on 25 August 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Wai Kwan (appointed on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Michael Ngai Ming Tak (appointed on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Kong Chi Mo (appointed on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Hong Tao (appointed on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Daniel Domingos Anténio
(resigned on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Kwok Chi Chung (resigned on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Chow Wing Tung (resigned on 31 May 2017)
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In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2), 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Hung Ching Fung, Mr. Chau Chit, Mr.
Yan Xu, Ms. Chen Hong, and Mr. Wang Shoulei shall retire from
office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were disclosed
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), or as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in the Appendix 10 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the
Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the
Company (Long positions)

ERE
& ==

EITHAE
EREEZERRRE

R-FB—tF+_A=1t—8B ARAEFKTE
THRABRARASEEMEEE (EXREH
REERD ([EHFEME RG] ) EXVER) 2B
HERNEESTRERARBRTARAREEHRE
ZXHAARAR (TBRA]) » HEHER AR AIRE
EH M B GRPIEIG2GA T 7 E 2 B L iR
RFrES EmARR ([ EMARR) MR 10pE 2z L
BOTANESETEFXSHRESTA ([1REFRI])
ARTTHEARRB LB ZERIORRWNT -

g;&ﬂ%ﬁ’i@ﬁmiﬁizjéﬁﬂﬁ (4

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage

shares held of issued

Name of Director personal interests share capital
HEBEANERZ HEBFTREZ

EEna LiEREE BHAESEH
Mr. Yan Xu BB 4 390,313,514 57.95%
Mr. Chau Chit B kE 49,693,600 7.38%
Mr. Hung Ching Fung HIF g S 1,500,000 0.22%
Ms. Chen Hong PR YT 20 &= 200,400 0.03%

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2017



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors nor the Chief Executive of the Company nor their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year of 2017, the Company has acquired Starlight
Legend Investment Limited from the Vendor which is wholly
owned and controlled by Mr. Yan Xu, the controlling shareholder
and chairman of the Company. Details can be referred to the
Company’s announcements dated 14 September 2017 and 13
December 2017, and the Company’s circular dated 26 October
2017.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business (as defined in the Listing Rules) to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that each Director,
secretary or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which any of them may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of the duties in their respective offices.
The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate
insurance to cover potential legal actions against its Directors.

The above provision for the benefit of the Directors is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 1 June 2012
(“Share Option Scheme”). No options have been granted under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as the Share Option Scheme of the Company, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company, the following persons
(other than any director and chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Directors’ Report
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FEIRR 2 SRR

RZE—tF+_A=+—HB HEARREERE
BITBAERH ATAT (RAREANEERTE
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BIEEA R IEKRFIEXVEE2 R3NP 2 XA
MARAREEZ HEERAR KB BEELFRPER
Bl 336IEBRARNGIIFE 2B METRE sk 2 sk
KR HBITHNEARAI BRI ZERIAE

Approximate

percentage
Number of of issued
ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
BEAT EBITR
MRREE BB 514 FifsEiEReE AEHE S
(Note 1)
(B EE1)
Qilu International Funds SPC Person having a security 419,007,114 (L) 62.21%
(acting for and on behalf of interest in shares
Zhongtai Dingfeng Classified (note 2)
Fund SP)
(A& Rt &k Zhongtai Dingfeng R BEEESESZALT
Classified Fund SP77%) (BtzE2)
Zhongtai International Asset Investment manager (note 3) 419,007,114 (L) 62.21%
Management Limited
P REREEEEERAA BE R (fTEES)
Cosmic Leader Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (note 4) 369,313,514 (L) 54.83%
EmEB A (H4)
Rare Jewels Limited Beneficial owner (note 4) 21,000,000 (L) 3.12%
EnEA A (Fzd)
Yan Xu Interest held by controlled 390,313,514 (L) 57.95%
B corporation (note 4)
EAJB Rt EEsE 2 s (MH5Ee)
Mega Start Limited Beneficial owner (note 5) 49,693,600 (L) 7.38%
EnEA A (FsEs)
Chau Chit Interest held by controlled 49,693,600 (L) 7.38%
B corporation (note 5)
Ik REGEERE 2w (H5E5)

EAXIBREBERAA g0
s
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Notes:

(8

Save

All the shares are long positions.

The percentages are calculated based on the total number of
issued shares of the Company of 673,564,799 shares as at 31
December 2017.

Based on the information available to the Company, Qilu
International Funds SPC is an exempted segregated portfolio
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is acting for and
on behalf of Zhongtai Dingfeng Classified Fund SP.

Based on the information available to the Company, Zhongtai
International Asset Management Limited is the investment
manager of Qilu International Funds SPC.

The entire issued share capital of Cosmic Leader Holdings Limited
is beneficially owned as to 80% by Mr. Yan Xu. By virtue of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Mr. Yan Xu is deemed to be
interested in the 369,313,514 shares of Cosmic Leader Holdings
Limited. In addition, the entire issued share capital of Rare Jewels
Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yan Xu. By virtue
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Mr. Yan Xu is deemed to
be interested in the 21,000,000 shares of Rare Jewels Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Mega Start Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Chau Chit. By virtue of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Mr. Chau Chit is deemed to be interested
in the 49,693,600 shares of the Company.

as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified

and is not aware of any other persons who had an interest
or a short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31
December 2017.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

2014 Convertible Notes

On 11 July 2014, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Reach Luck International Limited to issue
the 3-year zero coupon Convertible Notes with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$55,650,000, and the subscription was
completed on 19 September 2014.

The Convertible Notes are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and are convertible at the option of the bondholder at any
time after the date of issuance up to and including the date
which is five business days prior to the maturity date of 19
September 2017, into new shares of the Company at a price
of HK$0.35 per share, subject to anti-dilutive adjustments.
Upon full conversion a total of 159,000,000 new ordinary
shares would be issued by the Company. The Company shall
redeem any Convertible Notes which remain outstanding on the
maturity date at its principal amount. As at 31 December 2017,
HK$55,650,000 of the Convertible Notes was converted into
158,999,999 shares of the Company.

2015 Convertible Bonds

On 5 November 2015, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreements with the Subscribers, pursuant to
which the Subscribers have severally and conditionally agreed
to subscribe, and the Company has conditionally agreed to
issue, the Convertible Bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$365,000,000, in respect of the issue and allotment of
an aggregate of 73,000,000 Shares to the Subscribers at the
Subscription Price of HK$5 per Subscription Share.

Directors’ Report
FEORLE

iR IS 5 52 AR AERE S AR

—E-NFTARRERE

RZZE—NE+tA+—B AR EBDBEHEER
NAIRI M RE R LA B 1T AN & 4858 B55,650,0007%8
TH=FHZZS A RRER BERESZTHEEN
T-—NFLA+ABREK-

AHRBREENELYE BEFFE AT RERE
THHEEEIHBE - T—+FE LA+t NBRER
MEERER (BFEZB) LERZRERH%H0.355
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Among the aggregate principal amount of HK$365,000,000,
Subscriptions of Convertible Bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$315,000,000 were completed on 2 December
2015. The net proceeds were approximately HK$314,700,000.
Based on the initial Conversion Price of HK$5.00 per Conversion
Share, a maximum number of 63,000,000 Conversion Shares
may fall to be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds. As at 31
December 2017, none of the Convertible Bonds was converted
into shares of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, warrants or other similar rights as at
31 December 2017 and there has been no exercise of any
convertible securities, warrants or similar rights during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into for the year are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based
on their merits, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, upon considering the Group'’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within
the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is a
sufficient public float of the issued share capital of the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with an aim to protect the
interests of shareholders. A report on the principal corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out on
pages 24 to 36 of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Yan Xu
Chairman
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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IBDO

E5E - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

STARLIGHT CULTURE ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
(formerly known as Jimei International Entertainment
Group Limited)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited (formerly known
as Jimei International Entertainment Group Limited) (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 94 to 226, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, which stated the Group incurred a loss attributable
to owner of the Company of HK$294,439,000 and at the
end of reporting period, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately HK$197,841,000 and
HK$110,455,000 respectively. As stated in note 3, these
conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as going
concerns. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Significant business combinations

During the year, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in
Starlight Legend Investment Limited (“Starlight Legend”) at
total consideration of approximately HK$161,015,000. The
acquisition constituted business combinations for accounting
purpose.

The accounting for business combination is an area of focus
due to the significance of the transactions and the judgements
involved, including the identification and valuation of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. Any error made in the
identification and/or valuation of these assets and liabilities
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the initial accounting for the acquisition of Starlight
Legend during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
determined provisionally in the consolidated financial statements
as the corresponding valuations had not been completed.

Refer to accounting policies per note 4 and note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements for further details.

Our response:

Qur procedures in relation to the significant business
combinations included:

- Obtaining and reviewing the terms of the share purchase
agreement and other documents in relation to the
acquisition;

- Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge and understanding of the businesses
and markets; and

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and evaluating the reasonableness of
the budgets.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Valuation of contingent consideration payable
for business acquisition

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had contingent
consideration payables of approximately HK$1,563,000, which
will be payable when certain conditions are met between year
2017 and 2021.

The Group recognised contingent consideration payable at fair
value at the date of acquisition and as at 31 December 2017.
These fair value measurements require management’s estimation
and significant judgment on post-acquisition performance of the
acquired business and discount rate used.

Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account.

We focused on this area as the assessment made by
management involved significant estimates and judgments
in relation to the post-acquisition performance of individual
businesses and discount rates applied, which may be affected
by unexpected changes in future market or economic conditions
or significant events or circumstances related to the acquired
business.

Refer to the contingent consideration of acquisition of
subsidiaries per note 5 and note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements for further details.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Valuation of contingent consideration payable
for business acquisition (continuea)

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation assessment
included:

= Checking the contingent consideration payable calculation
prepared by management against the formula stated in the
sale and purchase agreement;

= Evaluating performance forecasts used in the contingent
consideration payable calculation and tested the
mathematical accuracy of the underlying calculation of
consideration payable and agreed them to the financial
projection prepared by management for the specific
financial period stipulated by the sales and purchase
agreement;

- Analysing the key assumptions adopted by management
with reference to their business plan and historical actual
results to assess the quality of management’s financial
projection; and

- Comparing the discount rates used by management
against market information and internal data.

Recoverability of receivables from trading and
gaming businesses

Receivables from trading and gaming businesses mainly
comprise trade receivables and amounts due from gaming
patrons. Trade debtors and gaming patrons are obliged to settle
amounts due according to the terms mutually agreed by both
parties. Management determines the allowance for irrecoverable
debts on a regular basis and reassesses the estimates to
recognise impairment on the receivables at the reporting dates
and did not identify any impairment not being recorded.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Recoverability of receivables from trading and
gaming businesses (continued)

We identified the recoverability of the receivables from trading
and gaming businesses as key audit matter due to the size of
the trade receivables past due as at 31 December 2017 and
the significant management judgement used to evaluate the
recoverability of such balances.

Refer to the provisions in respect of recoverability of trade and
other receivables critical accounting judgement per note 5,
accounting policies per note 4 and note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements for further details.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to recoverability of receivables from
trading and gaming businesses included:

- We assessed the judgment and estimation adopted by
management in respect of provision on doubtful debts and
impairment testing;

- We checked the calculation of the recoverable amount of
receivables from trading and gaming businesses based on
estimation adopted by management; and

- We checked the adequacy of disclosure of the valuation of
the receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Impairment of goodwill and film product

The Group has recognised goodwill of approximately
HK$54,827,000, net of impairment of HK$43,844,000
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017 and film
products of HK$16,855,000 arising from the acquisition of
Starlight Legend near the end of the reporting period.

Management has performed impairment tests and concluded
that an impairment loss of HK$43,844,000 should be recognised
in relation to goodwill during the year. This conclusion was
based on the estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash generating units (“CGUSs”) using the value-in-use (“VIU
calculation”) model or the assets-based approach that required
significant judgements with respect to the inputs to the VIU
calculation.

Refer to impairment of goodwill and estimated impairment of film
products per note 5, accounting policies per note 4 and note 18
and note 20 to the consolidated financial statements for further
details.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
included:

- Evaluating the valuation specialists’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies, including the VIU calculations and the
assets-based approach, used by the valuation specialists
and management to estimate the recoverable amount of
the CGUs;

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Impairment of goodwill and film product
(continued)

Our response: (continued)

- Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge and understanding of the businesses
and markets;

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and evaluating the reasonableness of
the budgets; and

S Evaluating the sensitivity of the impairment tests to
changes in key assumptions.

Valuation of financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial liabilities (Tranche 2) are
recorded at fair value in the statement of financial position. These
were grouped into level 3 fair value hierarchy measurements
respectively in accordance with HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement.

We focused on this area because fair value changes recognised
in profit or loss may be misstated due to the application of
inappropriate valuation techniques which often involve the
exercise of significant management judgement and the use of
assumptions and estimates. We identified and assessed the
following risks that could lead to inaccurate fair values:

- Inputs such as the Company’s own credit risk, discount
rate, volatilities, which are subject to significant judgment.

Refer to the fair value measurement critical accounting
judgement per note 5, accounting policies per note 4 and note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Valuation of financial instruments (continuead)
Our response:

Our procedures in relation to valuation of financial instruments
included:

= Utilising our valuation specialists to assess the valuation
model and methodologies;

- Testing the selection criteria of instrument comparables
with reference to active markets which have similar terms
of the financial instrument;

- Assessing the financial statement disclosure of the fair
value hierarchy assigned to the instrument, including
sensitivity to key inputs and the Group’s exposure to
valuation risk;

- Checking input data to supporting evidence and
considering its reasonableness; and

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of
the management’s valuation expert.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited
Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT (continued)

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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